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Independent Audifor’s Report

L/i ;

To the Board of Directors of Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company:

We have audited the accompanying conselidated financial statements of Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at Mairch 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, and the
consolidated staternents of income, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of
changes in net assets and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and cther explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidaied Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Business Act and its related regulations thereunder and in comformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of conselidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud
Or eTTOL.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial staiements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and gerform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abowt the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedurss that are appropriate in the circumstances, while the objective of the financial statement
audit is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An andit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statemends,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Meiji
Yasuda Life Insurance Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as at March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, and their financial
performance and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Business Act and
its related regulations thereunder and in comformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Empkhkasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 24 Subsequent Events to the consolidated financial statements.
Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 100% of the outstanding shares of
StanCorp Financial Group, Inc. on July 23 (July 24, Japan local time), 2015.

Convenience Translaiion

The U.8. doliar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31,
2015 are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dellar amounts
and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

kPMCG AZSA LLC

KPMGAZSA LLC
Angust 28, 2615
Tokyo, Japan
KPS AZEA LLE, & limhed labllity audit comporation incorporated under
the Japanese Cenified Public Accountants Law and 2 member firm of she

KPMG network of indeperdent member firms afilated with KPMG
Inamstional Cooperative ["KPME Internatonal ™), 3 Swiss entity.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consclidated Balance Sheets

Millions of
. Willions of Yen .S, Dollars
As of March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
ASSETS:
Cash and deposits (Notes 3and4) ... ... ... ....... 253299 ¥ 235740 ¥ 240,038 $ 1,960
Callloans (Note 3) ... ... . o i iiaiiee.s 368,000 244,000 368,000 3,005
Monetary claims bought {(Note 4} .._........... ... 265,252 233,622 229,523 1874
Securities (Notes 4,5, 6,and 7) ... ............... 25,611,969 27,201,316 23256 897 238,920
Loans (Notes 4, B, and @) .. ....................... 5,213,965 5,157,338 5.076,341 41,456
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 10, 11, and 12)
Langd . .o [T 837,711 630,643 621,684 5077
Buildings. ... i i PR 333,154 3417 301,346 2,460
Conatruction in Progress. -« ... oeouvuiaiiniinasos 2,352 3,650 5,045 48
Cther tangible fixed assets. .. .o vin e i it ienn 4,463 4,074 3,454 28
Subtotal............... S 477,682 453,085 932,631 7615
Irtangible fixed assets ) :
Software, . ...... .. e N e e e e et e 28,275 37,179 31,788 308
Other intangible fixed mssets ... . ... ... .aaun. 28,163 20,644 26,304 215
Subtotal......... e, 57,439 58423 54,183 524
Due fremagerts. .. ... ... ... ... 0 iian.. e 1,628 1,644 1,647 13
Reinsurance recefvables ... ... ... 0 i aa 1,400 2,888 €75 5
Otherassets....... ..o iiiivimaninreinas e 313,838 228,003 317,794 2535
Net defined benefit assets (Note 13} .............. — 2,461 74,345 6507
Deferred tax assets (Note 14) . .................. 1,718 2313 1,77% 14
Custormers’ habilities under acceptances and
guaraniees, ., ,.....- e 22858 21.344 20,848 110
Allawance for possible loan losses ... ............ (9,529) (8,135) {5,004) (41)
Total assets, . o e e 33,080,624 ¥ 34334054 ¥ 36579624 § 298,731
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Meiii Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consclidated Balance Sheets (continued)
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Mhons of
Millians of Yen .5, Dollars
As of March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
LIABILITIES:
Policy reserves and other reserves
Reserve for outstanding claims. ... ....... .. ... ........ b4 116,138 ¥ 120,064 ¥ 114,465 H 934
PoliGy MBServes. .. .. e e e 27858167 29,264,143 30,225,061 246 B35
Poticyholders' dividend reserves (Note 18), .. ............ 280,524 270,023 253,414 2,068
Subtntal. ................... e e s 28,254 29 29654231 30,592,941 248,840
DuE L0 @EOTHS .. . e 16 15 9 D
Reinsurance payables . ... ... ... .. .. . ... ... ... 1,384 3,030 ) 804 €
Other liabilities ... ... .00 in i i 1,451,428 1,063,093 700,188 5,718
Acorued retirement benefits (Note 13) ... ... .. ... 757 e — —
Net defined benefit liabilities (Note 13) ... ... 0.0 0h. e 814 1,084 8
Accrued retirement benefits for directors and
executive officers (Note 17) ... ..o ivrrinrenint.n 393 183 92 ]
Reserve for contingent liabilities (Mote 18) . ............. 2,563 14 2 0
Reserve for price fluctuation ....................... ... 364,297 481,203 492,907 4,025
Deferred tax lisbilities (Note 14} ... ......... ... ... 176,780 122,404 504,535 4,120
Deferred tax [abilities for land revaluation ... .......... 94,555 92,910 85,877 701
Acceptances and guarantees .. ...... ... ..ol eaiio.. 22,858 21,344 2{1,848 170
Total liabilities .. ... ... .. . e 30,369,875 31,439,336 32,395,288 - 264,501
NET ASSETS:
Foundation funds (Note 19) ..............o.ooouvinen. 210,000 260,000 260,000 2123
Reserve for redemption of foundation funds (Note 19} ... 430,000 410,000 470,000 3,838
Reserve forrevaluation ... .. ... . it iiivnninaas 452 452 452 3
Surplus ... ..ol e 344,913 432,085 472,633 3,858
Total funds, reserve and surplus ... . ovie el 965,365 1,102,548 1,202,986 9,824
Hei unrealized gains on available~for-sale securities . ... 1,641,055 1,738,783 2,838,597 23,181
Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives under hedge .
accounting ,........ e 3,815 944 15 A58 126
Lard revaluation differences .......... ... el 107,618 106,051 118,988 971
Foreign currency translation adjustments . ............. (10,707) 7,207 22,854 186
Remeasurements of defined beneBt plans ... ........ — (66,062) (22,862} {186)
Total accumuiated other comprehensive income .., ... .. 1,741,784 1,787.825 2.973.074 24279
Minority interests .. ... ... i i i 3455 - 4,243 4,274 34
Total net @ssets ... ... ... iiiii i 2,710,645 2,894,717 4,180,335 34,139
Total liabilities and net assets ................... I ¥ 33080624 ¥ 34334054 ¥ 36,579,624 $ 298,331
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Meljii Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income
[Consolidated Statements of Income]

Millions of
Millions of Yan U.S. Doilars
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
CRDINARY INGOME:
Insurance premiums and other ... ... ... ... 3679866 ¥ 3,638,255 ¥ 3,431 497 28,023
Investment income .
Interest, dividends and other income ................ 623,353 669,740 98,484 5,104
Gains on money held in trust ............, s D 0 c 0
Gains on sales of seourities .. ... o i rraa.., 151,487 220,576 186,293 1,821
Gains an redemgption of securities ... ... o000 5,358 36416 8,075 474
Foreign exchange gains ... ..ooviiinn iy enan 746 14 — —
Reversal of allowanse for poesible lean Josses ..., ..., 489 1,31 2875 23
Gther investment income ..., . i iiienerinenn 134 761 B0 T
Investment gains on separate accounts .............. 828580 52,769 83,506 G684
Subtotal ... i B§4.501 981,679 1,030,435 8,415
Other ordirary INCOME ... ... iiiesvaiieracianins 184,367 161,482 137,908 1,126
Total ordinary income ... ... .. ... il 4,728,735 A4181 411 4,599,843 37,560
ORDINARY EXPENSES:
Benafits and other payments R
Claims paid oo .o e BOE, 186 678439 542721 5,248
Annuity Payments ..., e e s 525345 815,210 849,963 6,841
Henefit pPayments  «..o.oiuoeeit e annn " 474940 452,546 430,353 3,514
Surrender benefits ... e e 408,472 438,005 453,264 3,701
Other refunds ... ... o 81,859 102,008 231,236 1,888
Subtotal ... o 2,300,604 2,287,401 2,607,648 21,284
Provision for policy reserves and other resenves
Provision fer reserve for outstanding claims ..., ... . — 3,700 -— —
Provision for policy reserves ..o i 1,342,731 1,389225 655,304 7.801
Provision for interest on palicyholders' dividend
reserves (Note 15) ; 522 490 481 3
Subtotal ... et 1,343,254 1,403,418 955,765 1,805
Investment expenses
Interest expenses .............ceiiiiiiiiin e, 2,839 3322 3,368 27
Losses on sales of seourities .., ..vet it ienn 16,204 28,000 365 ?
Losses on valuation of securtties _........... ..... 28414 1,704 300 2
Losses on redemption of securities ., ... .. ..., ... 6,126 o3 — ——
Losses on derivative financial instruments ... _..... 34.261 57481 71,082 580
Forelgn exchange Iosses. .. ... . . v - — 144 1
Depreciation of real estate for non-insurance business. . 10,077 9,808 8,737 78
Other investment expenses ..., ....... s 10,426 11,520 12,982 106
Subtatal Lo e e 108,448 111,847 87,982 800
Opersting expenses (Note 21) .. ... ... ... ... 364,807 364,701 361,559 2052
Other ordinary BXPENSES . .t iareirinnse 271,136 189,167 180,519 1,555
Total ordinary SXpEnses e e e 4,328,351 4,356,535 4213,375 ‘34,408
Ordinary profit o oeetoe e s 400384 ¥ 424882 ¥ 386,468 3,156
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consclidated Subsidiaries

Gonsolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income

[Consolidated Statements of Income] (continued)

Millions of
Millions of Yen .8, Dollers
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
Extracrdinary gains
Gains on disposals of fixed assets ,...... e 9,783 1.408 5,965 43
Reversal of reserve for contingent liabibties ... ... .. ag —— 12 D
Subtotal ... .. e 9,874 1,408 5,978 48
Extraordinary losses
Losses on disposals of fixed assets ... ... ... . 5,895 71521 5,582 45
Impairment fosses (Note 12) ... ...oovooniol 3,539 5,349 8,344 51
Provision for reserve for contingent liabilities , .. ... . — 6 - -
Provision for reserve for price fluctustion .......... 112,944 116,851 11,562 94
Losses on reduction entry of real estate . ... ... ... 83 — 2413 18
Contributions for promction of social
welare praject - ... ... L o .. B2 853 552 4
Other extraordinary losses {(Note 13) ............. 189 — 1,678 13
Subtotal .............. .. e 123,305 130,283 28,133 228
Surplus before income taxes and minority interests ... 286,952 296,007 364,312 2,975
income taxes (Note 14)
CUFTeNt .. e e e 85,716 123,988 119,746 977
Deferred ... i U {35,531) (89,483) (21.181) (172)
Total income taxes ... . i e 30,185 54,505 98,564 agd
Surplus before minority interests ... ... ... 738,767 241,502 265,747 2170
Minority interests .. ... ... iiiiiiiaan 57 830 344 2
Netsarplus ... ...... ... ... ... ... e 236,709 240,612 285,402 2,187
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consoclidated Subsidiaries

Consoclidated Statements of Income and Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income

[ Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income]

Mitlions of
. Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
Surplus before minority interests ..., L., .. ¥ 236,767 ¥ 241502 ¥ 265,747 2170
Other comprehensive income (Joss} (Note 23) R 830,243 113,777 1,178,038 8,620
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available—for-szle
SEOUIIEIBS o sttt e ettt ne s e 812217 49,288 1,087,249 B.SE0
Deferred unrealized gains (losses) on derivetives under ’
hedpe 20C0UMHNE ..o i e e 5,340 (2.871) 14511 118
Land revaluation differences ... ... L Lo, 25 — B854 48
Foreign currency translation agjustments ...,......... 3,259 7,048 £,827 47
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans ........ ..., - —_ 43,135 2352
Share of other comprehensive income (oss) of agsociates
sccounted for under the aquity method ... 0y 9,400 10,310 11,430 a3
COMPrenensive iNGOME .. vueissieeareeeeeeenn .. ¥ 1067010 ¥ 355278 ¥ 1,443,786 11,790
Comprehensive income zttributable to the Parent
COmpPaNnY ... ciririr it ey T, 1,066,951 354,383 1,442,498 11,788
Gomprehensive income (loss) attributable to minority .
interests .. e e s 58 895 2B6 2
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Meiii Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2013 Millions of Yen

Funds, reserve and surplus

Reserve for
redamption of

Foundation foundation Tetal funds,
funds iunds Reserve for reserve and
(Note 18) {Note 19) revaluation Surplus surplus
Beginning balance 110,000 410,000 452 255484 775936
Changes in the fiscal year
Issuance of foundation funds 100,000 100,000
Additions to policyholders” dividend
reserves (Note 15) (133,466) (133,466)
Payment of interest on foundation funds (1,316) {1,318)
Net surplus . 238,708 236,708
Reversal of land revaluation differences (12,427) (12.497)
Net changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus B
Net changes in the fiscal year 100,000 — — B9,428 189,428
Ending balance 210,000 410,000 452 344913 965 385
Accumulated other comprehensive income (lass)
Net Geferrad
uprealized unirealized
gains gains Totel
{tosses) on {iosses) on Foreign accumulaled
available derivatives lLand curency other
—for-sale under hedge revaluation translstion  comprehensive Minority Total net
securities aocounting differences adjustment income interests assets
Beginning balance 827,868 (1,524) 95,086 {22,393) 895,044 3,674 1,678,655
Changes in the fiscal vear
Issuance of foundation funds 100,000
Additions to policyholders’ dividend
reserves (Note 15) (133.466)
Payment of interest on foundation funds (1,316)
Net surplus 236,709
Reversal of land revaluation differances {12.497)
Net changes, excluding funds, reserves ’
and surplus 813,188 5,340 12.523 11,685 842 739 {179) 842560
Net changes in the fiscal year 813,189 5,340 12523 11,685 842738 (179) 1,031,989
Ending balance 1,641,055 3,815 107,619 (10,767) 1,741,784 3,495 2,710,645
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2014 o . Millions af Yen
Funds, reserve and surplus
Raserve for
redemption of .
Foundation foundation Toral funds,
funds funds Reserve for reserve and
{Note 18) {Mata 103 revaluation Surplus surplug
Beginning balance 210,000 410,000 452 344,913 865,365
Changes in the fiscal year
Issuance of foundation funds 50,000 50,000
Additions to policyholders’ dividend
reserves (Note 15) (152835)  (152.835)
Payment of interest on foundation funds {2162) (2.162)
Net surplus 240612 240,812
Reversal of land revaluation differences 1568 1,568

Net changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus )
Net changes in the fiscal year » 50,000 — — 87,182 137,182
Ending balance o 260,600 410,000 452 . 438,095 1,102,548

Accumulated other comprehensive income (Joss)

Net Deferred
unrealized unreatized
zains gRins Tatal
{losses) on (losses) on Foreign aceumilatad
availabla derivatives Land surrency Remessurements pther
~for-sale under hedge revalustion transiation ofdefired  comprohensive Minortty Total net
secufities ' accounting differences sdiustment benefit plans income interests E55€ts
Beginning balance 1,541,055 3,818 107,619 (10307 —_— 1,741,784 3.485 2,710,845
Changes in the fiscal year .
Issuance of foundation funds 50,000
Additions to policyhoiders’ dividend
reserves (Note 15) (152,835
Payment of interest on foundation funds (2,162)
Net surplus 240512
Reversal of land revaluation differences 1566
Net changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus 88,727 (2.871) (1.568) 17915 (B6.062) 46,141 748 46,880
Net changes in the fiscal vear 98,727 (2871) (1,568} 17815 {66,062} 45,141 748 184072
Ending balance 1,739,783 944 106,051 7207 {66.062) 1787925 4,243 2,894,717
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2N5

Millions of Yen

Funds. reserve and surplus

Reserve for
redemption of
Foundation foundation Total funds,
funds funds Reserve for reserve and
. (Note 16) (Note 19) revaluation Surplus surplus
Beginning balance 260,000 410,000 452 432,085 1,102 548
Cumulstivn.a ef‘Fec.t .nf change in 2752 2,752
accounting palicies
Beginning balance after reflecting 260,000 410,000 452 434868 1105301
accounting policy changes ' : g Bl
Changes in the fiscal year
Issuance of foundation funds 60,000 £0,000
Additions te pelicyholders” dividend )
reserves (Note 15 (158,084)  (158,084)
Additions to reserve for redemption of
foundation funds ) 60,000 50,000
Payment of interest on foundation funda (2572) (2,572)
Net surplus 265402 265,402
Redemption of foundation funds {60,000) (60,000
Reversal of reserve for fund redemption (60,000) (60,000)
Reversal of land revaluation differences {7,061) (7,051}
Net changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus
Net changes in the fiscal year - 60,000 — 37,684 97,684
Ending balance 260,000 -470,000 452 . 472,533 1,202,586
Accurnulated other comprehensive income {loss)
Net Deferred
unreelized unrealized
gains geins
{losses) on {losses) on Fareign
availeble derivatives Land oUTENEY  Remeesdrements
—For-ssie under hedge revaluation translation of defined Minority Total net
securities accourting. differences adiustment benefit plans interests assets
Beginming balance 1,739,783 844 106,051 7.207 {66,062) 4243 2BB4T17
Cumu]ativ? effesl'l: .Of change in 2,752
accourting policies
Beginning belance after reficcting 1,738,783 944 106051 2207 (86.062) 4243 2887470
accourting policy changes
Ghanges in the fiscal year
Issuance of foundation funds 606,000
Additions to policykolders' dividend
reserves (Note 15) (158,054}
Additions to reserve for redemption of
foundation furids 50,000
Payment. of interest on foundation funds {2572) )
Net surplus 265,402
Rademption of foundation funds (60,000)
Reversal of reserve for fund redemption {60,000)
Reversal of land revaluation differences (7.051)
Nel changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus 1,008,814 14511 12.836 15,685 43,199 kil 1,185.179
Net changes in the fiscal year 1,098.814 14,511 12,836 15,688 43,199 31 1282884
2,838,587 15,458 118,988 22,894 (22,862) 4274 4,180,335

Ending balance
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Meijii Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2015

Millions of LLS, Dolfars

Funds, reserve and surplus

Reserve for
redemption of "
Foundatian foundation Total funds,
funds funds Reserve for reserve and
(Note 1) {Note 18} revaluation Surplus surpius
Beginning balance 2,123 3,348 3 3,528 0004
Cumulativ? effec:t 'of change in 22 29
sccounting policies
Heginning ba'lance .af"’cer refliecting 2123 3,348 3 3,551 9,026
accounting oolicy changes
Changss in the fiscal year
lesuance of foundation funds ABS 480
Additions to policyholders’ dividend
reserves {Note 15) (1,291) (1,201)
Additipns to reserve for redemption of
foundation funds 4B% 489
Payment of interest on foundation funds @n 1)
Net surplus 2,167 2187
Redemption of foundation funds (489} (429)
Reversat of reserve for fund redemption {489} (489)
Reversal of land revaluation differences 57 (57
Net changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus
Net changes in the fiscal year — 489 - 307 797
Ending balance 2,123 3,838 3 3,858 9,824
Accumulated other comprehensive incems (less)
Net Defarrad
unrzalized ureealized
gains gains Total
{losses) an {losses) on Farelgn accumulated
availabla derivativas Land currency Remeaspramerts ather
—for-sala under hedge revaluathon translation of defined comprehensive Minarity Total net
segurities agoounting differences adiustmart benefit pians income: interasis Bssets
Beginning balance 14,208 7 866 5 (539) 14,601 34 23639
Cumulative effect of change in o1
accounting policies _ ) .
Beginning balance after refieqting 14,208 7 866 58 (530 14,609 34 23,852
agcounting policv chanees
Changes In the fiscal vear '
lssuance of foundation funds 489
Additions to pofieyholders” dividend
reserves (Mote 15) (1,291)
Additicns to reserve for redemption of
foundation funds . 489
Payment of interest on foundation funds (1)
Net surplus ' 2,167
Redemption of foundation funds (489}
Reversal of reserve for fund redemption (489)
Reversa!l of land revaluation differences (57
Net changes, excluding funds, reserves
and surplus B.873 118 105 128 352 5673 0 9678
MNet changes in the fiscal year 8,873 118 105 128 352 9,678 o] 10,476
Ending balance - 23,181 126 871 186 (188) 24,279 34 34,138
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Meiii Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

' Millians of
Millions of Yen U.8. Dollars
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
1 Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus before income taxes and minority interests .. .., ¥ 286,952 ¥ 296,007 ¥ 364312 3 2975
Depreciation of real estate for non—insurance business . | 10,077 5,808 9,737 78
Depreciakion ... ... . i ittt iaramarany 22,152 21574 20913 170
Impairment [oBSEE .\ ... v arin e e 3,538 5,342 §,344 5%
increese {Decrease) in reserve for outstanding claims . . , {3.828) 3802 (5,15) (486)
increase {Decrease) in policy resarves ... ... ... ... 1,342,731 1,399,292 955,328 7.80¢
Drovision for interest on polieyholders' dividend .
FEEGIVES L oottt e - 522 480 461 3
Increase (Decrease) in allowance for possible lean
T {1,136) {1,384 {3,101) {25)
Increase (Decrease) in acerued refirement benefits , . . . . 14 —_ ) —_ —
Increase (Decrsase) in net defined benefit liabilities . ... . —_ 14 20 0
Inorease (Desrease) in accrued retirement benefits for -
directers and sxecutive officers .................. {151) {210) (90) )
Increase (Decrease) in reserve for contingent liabilities . | (552) {2.548) (12) )]
Increass (Decrease) in reserve for price fluctuation . ... 112544 116,851 11,562 o4
Interest, dividends. and cther Income, . vy viieeve . .s (623,353) (669,740) {698,484) (5,704)
Losses (Gains) on sacurities .. ... ... ... ... ... (417.378) (388,386) (520,202) {4,321)
Irterest XPEOSES ...t ih e e 2,539 3322 3,368 : 27
Foreign exchange losses (gains) .. ....._............. (ap) {67) 94 a
Losses (Geins) on tangible fixed assets .._............ (3,330} 4826 2032 18
Investment losses {gains) on equity method .. .. ..., ... {263) {1,617 (2,005} (18)
" Decrease (lncreass) in due from agents ............ .. (50) (s - (3 o)
Decrease (increase) in reinsurance receivabh}as P 31} (1,496} 2,277 18
Decrease (Increase) in other assets {excluding these
related to imvesting and fnancial*activities), . ... ..... (7,555) 5,146 41 561) {339)
Increase {Decrease) indue to agents.. ....o...ooun. .. 5 {3 (8) {0)
Increase {Decrease) in reinsurance payables . ..., . ..., 202 1630 (2,225} (i8)
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities (excluding thoss
releted to investing and financing activities) . ....... 111,277 (85,388) 70424 648
Others, NBY .. .vit ittt i e as 518 (8,012) (3,889) (1)
Subtotal . . e e ey B36,464 711,238 168,530 1,384
tmterest, dividends, and other income received ,,...... 647,767 698,043 740,485 6,047
INtErest Pald . . v ey e s {2,042} (3,021) (3,328) 27
Palicyholders’ dividends paid . ... ... ...ovireinsonnnn (140,773) (163,872) (175,208) (1,430)
INCome taxes PAId .o\ vvr s e et s s {49,224) (104.853) (150.147) (1,228)
Met cash provided by operating activiies — ......... ¥ 1282291 X 1138436 ¥ 581,329 H 4747
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consoclidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued}

Millions of
Milions of Yen k.8, Dollars
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
I Cash flows from investing activities
Net decrease (inercase) indeposils .. ......... ..., {15,260) ¥ {2487 ¥ (5427) § {44)
Purchase of monetary ofaims bought .. ..... ..., ... {17,500) (20,014} {21,500} {i78)
Proceede from seles and redemption of monetary
claims bougbt ... ... o e 22448 55,548 25711 210
Purchase of SeCURLIES. .. v et viie iaraanrnrranerss (7.031,196) {6,065,454) (3,365,610) {27.485)
Proceeds from sales and redemption of securities .., , .. 5:375,840 4985821 3,295,992 268,917
Loans extended ... ... . 00 i P (1,600,001} 1,109,740} - (1,061,804) (8671
Proceeds from cellection ofloans ... hi ool 1,268,374 1,169,225 1,145,247 9,352
Increase {Decrease) in pavables under securities
borrowing transaetions ... o el 575,750 (302,319) @47,111) (3,851)
Total investment activities (&) (1,321,543) (1,217,423) (434 434) {3,547)
1 (39,252} (178,997} 146,885 1,188
Purchase of tangiole fixed assets ... .o. . ierieii.s (37,862) (14,763} (15,281) {124)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets .......... 24845 13401 11,764 96
Purchase of intangble fixed assets ... v evininn (18,088) (14,122} {18,500) {151}
Others, NEL .. .. i o e i e (1,443) (1,464) {1,249) (10}
Net cash used Iiv investing activities ... ......... {1.354,002) (1,934,313) {457,710} (3,731
T Cash flows fram financing activities
Proceeds from issusnce ofdebt = ... ..., - — 663 5
Repayments of debt ... vy virry vaacraan e an {11} (51) (8s1) m
Proceeds from issuance of foundation funds . ......... 100,000 50,000 60,000 489
Redemption of foundation funds ..., ... — —_— (60,000) (489)
Payment of interest on fopndation funds . ..........., {1,316} (2,162) {(2572) {21}
Ohers, NBL vy caetiieas ceme v en e omeeemaanns (237} (237) {£55) (2)
Net cash provided by (used in} financing ’
Ft T 98,434 41,548 {3,056) {24)
IV Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash i
and cash equivalents L. ... i eriia i 1503 3229 2,196 17
V Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash
sguivalents .. ... e e 28,135 (145,098) 122,759 1.002
V1 Cash and sash equivalents at lhe beginning
oftheyear ... ... ... ..o NN 573247 601,382 456,284 3.726
VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
theyear (Note 8) ... ... i, 601,982 ¥ 456,284 ¥ 579,044 § 4,728
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of Presentation

MEIJI YASUDA LIFE INSURANCE CCMPANY (hereafter, “the Company”) has prepared
the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with the provisions
set forth in the Japanese “Insurance Business Act” and its related accounting
regulations in Japan, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan, which may differ in certain respects from accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than JJapan. The accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are based on their accounting records maintained in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles in the respecdtive countries of domicile, In
preparing the accompanying consolidated financia statements, certain reclassifications
have been made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to
present them in a format which is more familiar to readers outside Japan, in addition,
the notes to the consclidated financial statements inciude information which is not
required under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented
herein as additional information.

Amounis are rounded down to the nearest million yen. As a result, the totals do not add
up. The franslation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars is included solely for
the convenience of readers outside Japan, using the exchange rate prevailing at June
30, 2015, which was ¥122.45 to U.S. $1. The convenience translations should not be
construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have
been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other rate of
exchange.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{1) Principles of consofidation

a. Consolidated subsidiaries .

The numbers of consolidated subsidiaries were 5, 7 and 7 as of March 31, 2013, 2014

and 2015, respectively. The consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 tnclude as
follows;

Meiji Yasuda General Insurance Co., Ltd.  (Japan)

Meiii Yasuda Asset Management Company Ltd.  (Japan)
Meiji Yasuda System Technology Company Limited (Japan)
Pacific Guardian Life [nsurance Company, Limited (U.S.A)
Meiji Yasuda Realty USA Incorporated  (U.S.A.}

Two subsidiaries of Meiji Yasuda Realty USA Incorporated have been included in
consolidation from the year ended March 31, 2014, in response to application of the
revised “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (The Accounting
Standards Beard of Japan {ASBJ), issued on March 25, 2011}, and its related
implementation guidance. This did not result in the restatement of prior periods.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The subsidiaries excluded from consolidation inchude subsidiaries such as Meiii Yasuda
Life Planning Center Company, Limited.

The respective and aggregate effects of the companies which are excluded from
consolidation, based on total assets, revenues, net income and surplus for the years
ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 are immaterial. This exclusion from
consolidation wouid not prevent a reasonable understanding of the consolidated
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries and tha resuits of their operations,

g

b, Affiliates

The numbers of affiliates accounted for by the equity method were 11, 12 and 12 as of
March 31; 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The affiliates accounted for by the equity
method as of March 31, 2015 include as follows:

Founder Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Co., Lid. (China)
PT Avrist Assurance (Indonesia)

TU Europa S.A. {Poland)

TUIR Warta S.A.  (Poland)

Thai Life insurance Public Cempany Limited. (Thailand)

Thai Life Insurance Public Company Limited has been included as an affiliate from the
year ended March 31, 2014, corresponding to acguiring its shares.

The subsidiaries not consolidated, e.g., Meiji Yasuda Life Planning Center Company,
Limited and others, and certain affiliates are excluded from the scope of the equity
metheod due to their immaterial effect, individually and in aggregate, on the consolidated
net income and consclidated surplus.

c. Fiscal year-end of consolidated subsidiaries

The fiscal year-ends of consolidated overseas subsidiaries and affiliates are December
31. The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of such subsidiaries and
affiliates as of their fiscal year-ends, with appropriate adjustments made for material
transactions cccurring between their respective fiscal year-ends and the date of the
conseclidated financial statements.

d. Valuation of assets and liabiiities of consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

The Company applies the fair value methed.

e. Goodwill on consolidation

Gooedwill (including goodwill refating to affiliates) is amortized on the siraight-line basis
over 20 years, However, immatenial amounts of goodwill are fully recognized as
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

expenses as incurred.

f. All the significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in
consolidation. In addition, all the material unrealized gains/losses included in
assets/liabilities resulting from intercompany transactions are also eliminated.

{2) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents are cotnprised of cash on hand, demand deposits and ali highty liquid
short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, which
are readily convertible info cash and present insignificant risk of change in value.

(3} Securities
Securities held by the Company are classified and accounted for as foliows:

a. Trading securities are stated at market value at the balance sheet date. The cost of
sales is determined by the moving average method.

b. Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost using the maving
average method and the amortization is calculated using the straight-line method.

c. Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost in accordance with the
“Temporary Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-Reserve-Matching
Bonds in the Insurance Industry,” (Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(JICPA), issued on November 16, 2000). The cost of sales is determined by the moving
average method and the amortization of discount/premium is calculated using the
straight-line method.

d. Equity securities issued by subsidiaries and affiliates are stated at cost using the
moving average method. The subsidiaries are prescribed under Article 2, Paragraph 12
of the “Insurance Business Act” and Article 13-5-2, Paragraph 3 of the “Order for

Enforcement of the Insurance Business Act.” The affiliates are under Paragraph 4 of the
order.

- e. Available-for-sale securities

iy Securities of which market value is readily avaitable
Stocks are stated at the average of the market value during the final month of the fiscal -
year.

Others are stated at market value at the balance sheet date. The cost of sales is
determined by the moving average method.

ii) Securities of which market value is extremely difficult to determine
Bonds (including foreign bonds) of which premium or discount are regarded as interest
rate adjustment are stated at amortized cost using the moving average method. The
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
~ Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

amortization is calculated using the straight-line method. Other securities are stated at
cost using the moving average method.

iii) Unrealized gains and losses an available-for-sale securities are reported-as a
component of net assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

" {4) Policy-reserve-matiching bonds

The Company classiffes bonds held with the aim of matching the duration to outstanding
insurance liabilities within the sub-groups (categorized by insurance type, investment
policy and other factors) of individual life insurance, individual annuities and group
pensions as poficy-reserve-matching bonds in accordance with the “Temporary
Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerhing Policy-Reserve-Matching Bonds in
the Insurance Industry” (JICPA, issued on November 16, 2000).

(5) Derivative transactions
Derivative transactions are stated at fair value.
{6) Method of hedge accounting

Methods of hedge accounting are in accordance with the “Accounting Standard for
Financial Instruments” {ASBJ, issued on March 10r 2008). These methods consist
primerily of:

- the special hedge accounting using interest rate swaps to hedge agarnst cash flow
volatility related fo loans receivable and payable;

the fair value hedge accounting using forward exchange confracts to hedge against
exchange rate fluctuation risk refated to foreign currency denominated bonds;

the deferred hedge accounting using currency swaps to hedge against exchange
rate fluctuation risk related to foreign currency denominated bonds;

the allocation method using currency swaps to hedge against exchange rate -
fluctuation related to foreign currency denominated loans; and

the deferred hedge accounting using interest rate swaps to hedge against interest
rate fluctuation risk related to insurance liabilities.

T

1

. Hedge effectiveness for the deferred hadge accounting to hedge against interest rate

fluctuation risk related to insurance liabilities is assessed by verifying the correlation
between interest rates that would be used in.calculating theoretical prices of hedged
items and hedging instruments.

(7) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets owned by the Company are depreciated as follows:

a. Buildings
Calculated using the stralght—llne method
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b. Cther tangible fixed assets
Calculated using the declining-balance method.

Tangible fixed assets are presented at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses,

The estimated useful lives of major items are as follows:
Buildings 2 to 50 years
Other tangible fixed assets 2 to 20 years

Revaluation of land

The Company revalued certain parcels of land owned for o'perational use as of March
31, 2000, as permiited by the "Act on Revaluation of Land”.

The difference in value before and after revaluation is directly included in net assets in
the consolidated balance sheets and presented as land revaluation differences, after
net of income taxes which is presented as deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation in
the consolidated balance sheets. As a revaluation method stipulated in Article 3,
Paragraph 3 of the act, the Company used the publicly announced appraisal value with
certain adjustments (detailed in Articie 2, liem 1 of the “Order for Enforcement of the Act
on Revaluation of Land”} for the revaluation.

The Company alsa revalued certain parcels of land acquired from former Yasuda
Mutual Life Insurance Company upon the merger on January 1, 2004 as of March 31,
2001, as permitted by the act. As a revaluation method stipulated in Article 3, Paragraph
3 of the act, the former company used the publicly announced appraisal value with
certain adjustments (detailed in Article 2, tem 1 of the order) and appraisal value
(detailed in Article 2, Item 5 of the order) for the revaluation.

(8) Software

Capitalized software for internal use pwned by the Company and subsidiaries {included
in intangible fixed assets in the cohsolidated balance sheets) is amortized using the
straight-iine method over the estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years).

{9) Allowance for possible loan losses

Allowance for possible loan losses of the Company is provided pursuant to its standards
for self assessment of asset quality and internal rules for write-offs of loans and
allowance for possible loan losses. :

For loans to borrowers that are legally bankrupt (hereafter, “bankrupt borrowers™) and
for loans to borrowers that are not yet legally bankrupt but substantially bankrupt
(hereafer, "substantially bankrupt borrowers”), an allowance is provided based on the
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

tofal amounts of the loans after deduction of charge-offs and any amounts expected o
be collected thraugh the disposal of collaterals and the execution of guarantees.

For loans to borrowers that have high possibility of bankruptey (hereafter, “borrowers
with high possibility of bankruptcy”), an allowance is provided at the amount deemed
necessary based on an overall solvency assessment, net of the expected collection by
disposal of collaterals and by exscuting guarantees.

For other loans, an allowance is provided by multiplying the claim amouni by an
anticipated defaulf rate calculated based on the Company’s actual default experience
for a certain period in the past.

Alt loans are assessed by the department concemed based on the Company’s
standards for the self-assessment of asset quality and an indspendent depariment is
responsible for audit of its self-assessment. The allowance for possible loan losses is
provided based on the result of the assessmeni.

For loans with collaterals to bankrupt baorrowers and substantially bankrupt borrowers,
the amount of inans exceeding the vaiue of estimated recovery through disposal of
collaterals or execution of guarantees is deermed uncollectible and written off. The .
amount of loans written off for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015
amounted to ¥140 million, ¥59 million and ¥50 million (U.S. $0 million}, respectively.

" (10) Policy reserves

Policy reserves of the Company are provided pursuant to Article 116 of the "Insurance
Business Act”. -

Premiun reserves, a main compoenent of policy reserves, are calcutated according to
the following method: '

2. For contracts that are subject to the standard policy reserve requirements, the
premium reserves are calculated pursuant to the methad stipulated by the Prime
Minister (Ministry of Finance Notification No. 48 in 1986).

b. For contracts that are nof subject to the standard policy reserve requirements, the
premium reserves are calculated using the net level premium method.

The policy reserves of the Company include an amount to be additionally set aside as
the difference arising from calculations of premium reserves using the expected rate of
interest of 2,75% for individual annuity contracts concluded on or before Aprii 1, 1996
purstiant to Article 63, Paragraph 5 of the “"Ordinance for Enforcement of the Insurance
Business Act”. The accumulation of the amount was completed on schedule over a
period of three years starting in the year ended March 31, 2008, Besides, an additional
reserve corresponding to the period after the beginning of annuity payment shall be
accumulated at the beginning of the paymerit of the above annulity contracts.
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Meiii Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company additionally set aside the policy
reserves for variabie life insurance contracts, and single premium endowment contracts
conciuded on or aiter September 2, 1995 pursuant to Article 69, Paragraph 5 of the
ordinance. Asg a result, policy reserves increased by ¥182,343 million (U.S. $1,570
mifiion) as of March 31, 2015 and ordinary profit and surplus before income taxes
decreased by ¥192,343 million (U.S. $1,570 million) for the vear ended March 31, 2015
compared to the cases where the Company did not accumulate the additional reserves. _

(11) Net definedﬁ,benefit liabilities and assets

Net defined benefit liabilities and assets are pfovided based on the estimate of
retirement benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

(12) Reserve for price fluctuation

Reserve for price fluctuation of the Company and the domestic insurance subsidiary is
calculated pursuant to Asticle 115 of the "Insurance Business Act’.

(13) Revenue recognition

nsurance premiums are recognized when premiums are received, and insurance
premiums due but not collected are not recognized as revenue. Unearned insurance
premiums are recognized as policy reserves.

(14) Policy acquisifion costis
Policy acquisition costs are expensed when incurred.
(15) Accounﬁng for consumption taxes

National and local consumption taxes of the Company are accounted far using the
tax-excluded method. Non-deductible censumption taxes are recoegnized as expenses
for the period, except for those relating to purchases of depreciable fixed assets which -
are not charged to expense but deferred as prepaid expenses and amortized over a
five-year period on the straight-line basis pursuant to the “Corporation Tax Act”.

(16) Foreign currency translation

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, except for equity securifies
issued by unconsclidated subsidiaries and affiliates, are translated into Japanese yen at
the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Equity securities issued by*
unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are transiated into Japanese yen at the
exchange rates on the dates of acguisiticn.

{17) New accounting standards
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

a. From the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2013, tangible fixed assets acquired
on or after Aprii 1, 2012 are accounted for using the siraight-line method as stipulated
by the revised “Corporation Tax Act.” The effect of this revision for the year ended March
31, 2013 was immaterial. '

b. Revised “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASBJ, issued
on March 25, 2011}, and its related implemeéntation guidance have been applied from
the year ended March 31, 2014, As a result, two subsidiaries of Meiji Yasuda Really
USA Incorporated have been included in consolidation. This change had nao effect on
Surplus as of the beginning-of the year ended March 31, 2014.

c. "Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ, issued on May 17, 2012) and
‘Guidance on Accounting Siandard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ, issued on May 17,
2012) have been applied, (except the provisions of Paragraph 35 of the standard and
Article 67 of the guidance), at the end of the year ended March 31, 2014.

Actuarial gains and losses, past service costs and the difference between retirement

- benefit obligations and plan assets that have yet to be recognized in profit or loss, are

recognized as net defined benefit Habilities or assets.

As a result, net defined benefit assets of ¥2,461 million and net defined benefit liabilities
of ¥814 million were recognized as of March 31, 2014, In addition, deferred tax assets
decreased by ¥8 million, deferred tax liabilities decreased by ¥28,102 miliion, and total
accumulated other comprehensive income decreased by ¥66,062 million as of March
31, 2014, : :

Retrospective application of this accounting standard to the consolidated financial
statements in prior fiscal years is not required or permitted.

d. Paragraph 35 of “Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits’ (ASB., issued on
May 17, 2012) and Paragraph 67 of “Guidance on Acceounting Standard for Retirement
Benefits” (ASBJ, issued on May 17, 2012} have been applied from the beginning of the
year ended March 31, 2015, Accordingly, from the beginning of the year ended March
31, 2015, the Company changed the method of attributing expected retivement benefit
to periods from the siraight-line basis to the benefit formula basis.

The amount of the effect of the change in the methed of calculation of retirement benefit
obligations and service costs was inciuded in surpius in the consolidated balance sheet

- at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2015 in accordance with the transitional

treatment set out in Paragraph 37 of the standard.

As a resul, surplus at the beginning of the period increased by ¥2,752 million (U.S. $22
million) and, as well, ordinary profit and surplus before income taxes and minority
interests decreased by ¥806 million {(U.S. $6 million) for the year ended March 31, 2015,
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consoclidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The compenents of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash
flows as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 were as folfows:

Millions of Yen Millions of
.8, Dollars

As of March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
Cash and deposits ¥ 232121 ¥ 212074 ¥ 210,945 $1,722
Call loans 368,000 244,000 368,000 3,005
Securities 261 210 99 - 0
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 601,382 ¥ 456284 ¥ 574,044 $4,728

4, Financial Instruments

{1) Qualitative information on financial instruments

- The Company deveiops the asset and liability management based on surplus, and it

monitors a surplus derived from the difference between the economic values of assets
and liabilities as a measure of financial soundness, in order to manage its investment
assets (excluding the assets of the separate account prescribed in Article 118,
Paragraph 1 of the “Insurance Business Act").

Based on this risk management, the Company mainly invests in securities and loans,
Securities held primarily consist of bonds, stocks, investment trusts and investments in
partnership capital. f.oans primarily consist of loans to domestic corporate borrowers.

The use of derivatives is, in principle, limited to hedging activities as a primary method
of hedging against invested asset risk and insurance liability risk.

Methods of hedge accounting are in accordance with the "Accounting Standard for

Financial Instruments” (ASBJ, issued on March 10, 2008). These methods consist

primarily of:

- the special hedge accounting using interest rate swaps to hedge against cash flow
volatility related to loans;

- the fair value hedge accounting using forward exchange contracts to hedge against

exchange rate fluctuation risk related to foreign currency denominated bonds;

the deferred hedge accounting using currency swaps to hedge against exchange

rate fluctuation risk related to foreign currency denominated bonds;

the allocation method using currency swaps to hedge against exchange rate

fluctuation related to foreign currency dencminated loans; and

the deferred hedge accounting using interest rate swaps to hedge against interest

rate fluctuation risk related to insurance liabilities,

Securities are exposed o market risk (interest rate fluctuation risk, exchange rate
fructuation risk and price fluctuation risk} and credit risk. Loans are exposed to credit risk
and interest rate fluciuation risk. Derivative transactions are exposed to market risk and
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

credit risk.

Loans payable are exposed to interest rate fluctuation risk arising from floating interest
rate borrowings.

With regard to the interest rate fluctuation risk management, the Company manages the
fluctuation risk on the basis of economic values from a surplus management
perspective, by purchasing super long-term bonds to keep asset duration stable and
using interest rate swaps for the interest rate risk hedge against insurance liabilities.

To manage the ei&hange rate fluctuation risk, the Company hedges agaihst exchange
rate fluctuation using forward exchange contracts where necessary for appropriate
controls of exchange rate fluctuation risk,

To manage the price fluctuation risk, the Company performs integrated management for
ouisianding balances and the profit and loss situation of securities and derivative
transactions and also monitors loss limits to minimize unexpected losses.

“ In addition to the Value at Risk (VaR) method to measure the maximum expected loss,

the Company performs stress tests periodically to simulate conditions that might arise in
the event of sharp market fluctuations that exceed normal forecasts.

The profit and loss status and compliance with these procedures are monitored by the
investment risk management department, reported regularly (or immediately in urgent
cases) o the sub-commitiee of investment risk management and, on important matters,
repaited directly to the Board of Directors and Commitlees.

To manage credit risk, the Company carefully identifies risks in each transaction and
limits investments to those that are assessed to be of high quality.

Where credit risk assessment is particularly important regarding corporate loans, the
credit risk management department ensures that a rigorous screening system is in
place, and monitors borrowers and internal credit rating using corporate screening
methods, The Company follows careful discussions by the Investment Committee

(Management Committee) to make decisions on highly important deals.

Further, the Company sets exposure limits based on counterparties' creditworthiness to
ensure that risk is not concentrated among certain companies or groups, and divarsifies
investments. :

With regard to derivative transactions, the Company limits risk by setting up policies and
establishing limits by the type of transaction and by each counterparty. At the same time,
a system of internal checks is in place by segregating the departments executing the
transactions from the administrative departments to ensure risk management is on an
appropriate footing.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments is based on the market price or, in cases where
market price is not available, based on prices calculated using reasonable methods in
the Company and subsidiaries.

Since certain assumptions are adopted for the price calculations, the prices calculated
may differ when different assumptions are used.

{2) Fair values of financial instruments
The amounts of the principal financial assets and liabilities reported in the consolidated

balance sheets at the end of the fiscal year, and fair values and the differences between
them, were as follows:
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes {o the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Millions of Yen Millions of U.S. Dolfars
As of March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
Balance Balance Balance Balance
sheet Fair value Difference  sheet Fair value Difference  sheet Fair value Difference  sheet Falr value Difference
armount amount amount amount
Cash and depaesits ¥253289 %2532¢9 ¥ - ¥235740 ¥235,740 ¥ —~  ¥240.038 ¥24O,038‘L ¥ - $1,960 $1.860 5 -
Available-for-sale securities (CDs) 22,989 22,999 ~ 9,950 ©,999 ' - 6,000 8,060 - 48 48 -
Maonetary claims bought 24G,513 255,908 15,394 233,622 245,033 11,410 229,523 241,833 12,308 1,874 1,974 100
A Held-to-maturity debt securities 208,727 224,121 15,394 204,308 218,719 11,410 200,223 212,532 12,308 1,635 1,735 100
Available-for-sale securities 31,788 -31,786 - 29,313 28,313 - 29,300 29,300 —~ 239 239 -
Securifies 24,728,733 25,425,103 696,368 26,332,407 26,983,869 651,461 28,377,842 28,665,018 1,287,075 231,751 242 262 10,511
Trading sacunities 730,472 - 730,472 - 775,087. 775,067 - 808,800 808,800 - 6,605 6,606 -
Held-to-maturity debt securities 5,853,785 6,410,758 546,970 5594873 6,057,424 462,560 5066536 5702545 636,008 41,376 46,570 5,194
Policy-reserve-matching bonds 2,415,504 2564903 148,399 5405462 5504,3r4 188,911 6,820,691 7,471,758 651,068 55,701 61.018 5,317
Available-for-sale securities 15,718,970 15,718,970 - 14,557,003 14,557,003 - 15,681,813 15,681,913 - 128,067 128,067 -
Loans 5213965 5411353 197,387 65,157,335 5,382 281 224945 5076391 5,357,002 280,610 41,456 43,748 2,291
Policy loans 320,048 320,048 - 307,580 307,580 - 293,365 283,365 - 2,385 2,385 -
Industrial and consuimer {oans 4,893,916 5,081,304 197,387 4,849,754 5,074,701 224,946 4,783,026 5,063,637 2808610 39,061 41,352 2,29
Allowance for possible loan losses (*1) (7,153) - - (5,735) - - {3,066} - - {25) — —
5,206,811 5411,353 204,541 5,151,599 5382 281 230,682 5,073,325 5357002 283677 41,431 43,748 2.316
Payables under securities borrowing
transactions . - 946,281 946,281 - 640,951 640,951 - 220,000 220,000 - 1,786 1,796 -
Loans payable 100,206 103,206 - 100,200 100,200 = 100,008 100,000 - 816 816 -
Derivative financial instruments (*2) (93,355)  (93,355) - (32,792)  (32,792) - (44171)  (44,171) - (360) (360} -
Hedge accounting fs not applied 2,150 2,150 - 411 411 - 27) (27) - {(8)] ()] -
Hedge accounting is applied (95,505)  ({95,505) - (33,203)  (33,203) - (44,143) (44,143 - (360) (360) —

(*1) The amounis are general allowance for possible losses on loans and specific allowance for possible loan [osses related to the ioans.
(*2) The amounts of receivables and payables atising from derivative transactions are shown as nef amounts,
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Meiji Yasuda Life insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

Note:

a. Method used to determine the fair value of financial instruments

i) Assets

Cash and deposils

The Company and subsidiaries regard book vaiue as fair value with the assumption that
fair value approximates book value due to short-term nature of these contracts. Fair
value of deposits deemed as securities fransactions based on “Accounting Standard for
Financial [nstruments” (ASBJ, issued on March 10, 2008) is calculated in the same
method shown in "Sacurities.”

Monetary claims bought ' :

Fair value of monetary claims bought deemed as securities transactions based on
“Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ, issued on March 10, 2008) is
calculated using the sarme method shown in “Securities” and the fair vaiue of these -
monetary claims bought is stated at theoretical prices calculated by discounting the
future cash flows to the present value or at the fair value obtained from counterparties at
the balance sheet date,

Subordinated trust beneficiary rights of which future cash flows cannct be estimated are
not subject to fair value disclosure and are therefore not included in the table above as
of March 31, 2013, because these are regarded as extremely difficult to determine fair
value. Their amount reporied in the consolidated balance sheets was ¥24,739 million as
of March 31, 2013 and none as of March 34, 2014 and 2015.

Securities

As for available-for-sale securities, domestic stocks of which market value is readily
available are stated at ihe average of the market value during the final month of the
fiscai year. Other securities are stated at market value at the balance sheet date.

Unlisted stocks and others of which market value is not readily available are not subject
to fair value disclosure and are therefore not included in the table above because these
are regarded as extremely difficult to determine fair value. The amounts of the unlisied
stocks and others reporied in the consolidated balance sheets were ¥883,236 millicn,
¥868,908 million and ¥878,954 mitlion {U.S. $7,178 million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014
and 2015, respectively. Impairment losses on the unlisted stocks and others were ¥514
million, ¥212 million and ¥254 million (U.S. $2 million) for the years ended March 31,
2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

Loans :

As credit exposure for policy loans without specific repayment periods is limited to the
amount of the cash surrender value, the Company and subsidiaries regard book value
as fair value with the assumption that fair value approximates book value in light of
factors such as projected repayment period and interest condition.
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Meiji Yasuda Life insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements {continued)

As for industrial and consumer loans, their fair value of these loans is primarily stated at
theoretical prices calculated by discounting the future cash flows fo the present value.
The fair value of loans to bankrupt borrowers, substantiatty bankrupt borvowers and
borrowers with high possibility of bankruptcy is stated at the amounts arrived at by
deducting estimated losses from the book value before direct write-off.

iy Liabilities

Payables under securities borrowing transactions

The Company and subsidiaries regard hook value as fair value with the assumption that
fair value approximates book value due to short-term nature of these contracts.

Loans payable

The Company and subsidiaries regard book value as fair value with the assumption that
fair value approximates book value since loans are made a floating interest rates that
reflect market interest rates timely, and since the Company's credit standing has not
changed significantly after borrowing.

i) Derivative financia! instruments

Listed transactions

The fair value of lisied transactions, such as stock index futures and bond futures is
stated at the closing or settlement prices at the balance sheet date,

OTC transactions ‘

The fair value of Over-the-Counter (OTC) transactions, such as foreign exchange
contracts, is stated at theoretical prices based on the TTM, WM Reuters rate or discount
rate at the balance sheet date, or fa|r value obtained from counterparties at the balance
sheet date.

Since OTC transactions of currency swaps contracts subject to the allacation method
are treated as an integral part of the hedged foreign currency denominated loans, their.
fair value is included in the fair value of hedged leans in the table above.

Interest rate swap transactions

The fair value of interest rate swap tra nsactlons is stated at theoretical prices calculated
by discounting the net future cash flows to the present value, or fair value obtained from
counterparties at the balance sheet dste.

Since interest rate swaps subject to fhe special hedge accounting are treated as an
infegral part of the hedged loan, their fair value is included in the fair value of hedged
loans in the table abave.

b. Securities by holding purpose
Trading securities

The unrealized valuation gains (losses) on trading securities included in profité (losses)
for the fiscal year amounted to ¥74,870 million, ¥(2,520) million and ¥25,474 million
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(U.&. 208 million) for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.



Held-to-maturity debi securities :
The amounts reported in the consalidated balance sheets and fair values of the held-to-maturity debt securities by security type at the end of the fiscal year, and

the differences batween them, w

and 2015, respectively.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

g S g g e e R

ere shown in the following table. No held-to-maturity debt securities were sold during the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014

As of March 31

Milliohs of Yen

Millions of U.5. Dollars

2013 2014 2015 2018
Balance Balance Balance N Balance
sheet Fair value Difference sheeat Fair value Difference shesat Fairvalue Difference sheet Fair value  Difference
amount amount amouitt amount
Securities whose fair value
exceeds the balahce sheet
amount
1) Mational & iocal
government bonds ¥5,000,201 ¥5585184  ¥494,803 ¥4,735074 ¥5 155465  ¥416460 ¥4221,779 ¥4,792,775  ¥570,996 §34 477 $39,140 $4,663
2} Corporate bonds 627,607 676,462 48,864 592,053 733,908 41,858 702,235 762,947 60,711 5,734 6,230 495
3} Other 328,749 347,608 18,855 296,098 310,043 13,945 288,025 305,450 17,425 2,352 2,494 142
Total 6,046,638 6,609,255 562617 5724127 5,199,418 475291 5,212,040 5,861,173 843,132 42 564 47,865 5,301
Securities whose fair value
does not exceed the
balance sheet amount
1) National & local
govemment bonds 3,028 3,005 21 3,025 2,997 {27) 1,864 1,848 18 15 15 {0}
2} Corpeorate bonds 2,001 1,988 {13} - 8,200 8,196 @ 12,952 12,836 (1 18). 105 104 {0y
3) Other 20,846 20,628 (217 683,829 52,530 (1,298) 39,801 39,218 (682) 325 320 (5}
Total 25,874 25622 {252) 75,055 73,724 (1,330) 54.718 53,904 (814) 448 440 IGH

(*) This table includes financial instruments that are desmed appropriate o be treated as securities under the “Financial Instruments and Exchange Act’,
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

Policy-reserve-matching bonds

The carrying amounts in the consolidated balance sheets of policy-reserve-matching bonds by security type were shown in the following table, along with their
fair values and the differences bstween these amounts. Sales of policy-reserve-matching bonds were ¥37,591 million to keep target of duration matching and

total gains on sales were ¥1,235 million and no loss for the year ended March 31, 2613, No policy-reserve-matching bonds were sold during the years ended

March 31, 2014 and 2015,

Millions of Yen Millions of U.S. Dallars
As of March 31 _ 2013 ’ 2014 2015 2018
Baiance : Balance : Balance ) Balance
sheet Fair value Diffarence sheet Fair value Difference sheet Fair value Difference sheet Fair value Difference
amount amount amount amount
Securities whose fair value : '
exceeds the balance shest
amount
1) National & local
government bonds ¥2 404308 ¥2,552 8661 ¥148,353 ¥5,037.684 ¥5228611 ¥180,826 ¥5,809,524 - ¥7.453,007  ¥649,482 $55,610 $60,014 $5,304
2) Corporate bonds 11,186 12,241 1,045 11,181 11,833 651 11,167 12,751 . 1,584 91 104 12
3) Other - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total 2,415,504 25842803 149,399 . 5,048,866 5,240,445 191,578 6,820,691 7,471,758 " B51 066 55,701 61,018 5317

Securities whose fair value
does not exceed the
balance sheet amount
1) National & local

government bonds - - - 355,596 353,920 (2,667) - - - - - -
2) Corporate bonds - - - - ' = - - - - - - -
3) Other - - - - ‘ - - - B _ - -

Total - - - - 356,596 353,829 (2.667) - - - - - -
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Meiji Yasuda Life insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Available-for-sale securities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Disposition of available-for-sale securities amounted to ¥2,709.975 million, ¥3,239,043 miliion and ¥1,477.320 million {U.8. $12,064 million) resulting in total
gains on sales of ¥150,232 miliion, ¥220,576 million and ¥186,293 million (U.S. $1,521 millicn) and total losses of ¥16,204 million, ¥31,822 million and ¥365
milion (U.S. $2 million) for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. With regard to available-for-sale securities, acquisition costs,

ach type of securities were shown in the following

table.

amortized costs, the amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets and the respective differences by e

Milllons of Yen

Millions of U.5. Dollars

As of March 31 2013 2014 2015 Z018
Acqu;fitlon Balance Acqu;fition Balance ‘ Acqucijition Balance ‘ Acqu;?ition Balance ‘
arré?:sﬁt?d afr?::;t Difference arr:;rst;zed afﬂhg::“ Difference arz%;tiied ars;)es;t Ditference arr:;r::ied afnhgjit Differsnce
Securities whose balance sheet amount
exceeds the acquisition or amoriized
cosis
{1) Domestic stocks ¥1.453.834  ¥2,617,207 ¥1,183,863  ¥1,470,3091  ¥2,953,046 ¥1,483555  ¥1,568,781 ¥3,993,134  ¥2.424 352 $12,811 $32,510 $19,798
(2) Bonds ) ' 7,4&6,914 8,241,416 754,601 5,568,263 6,045,327 458,063 4,423,080 4,817,078 394,017 36,121 38,335 3,217
1) Mationa! & local government bonds 6,580,704 7,288,113 697 408 4,816,738 5,023,132 406,393 3,457,542 3,787,413 329,870 28,236 30,930 2,693
2) Corporate bonds BOB, 110 953,302 57,193 §71,525 1,023,194 51,669 965,518 1,020,665 64,147 7,885 8,408 523
{3) Cther 3,064,422 3,574,721 510,298 3,019,273 3,661,599 642,325 4,767,088 5,948,790 1.181.,701 38,930 48,681 9,650
Total 12,004,871 14,433,435 2,428,564 10,077,929 72,561,873 2,583,943 10,758,931 14,759,003 4,000,072 87,863 120,530 32,656
Securities whose balance sheet amount
doss not exceed the acquisition or
amortized cosis .
(1) Domaestic stocks 207,788 177,505 (30,280) 272,696 250,928 (21,768) 84,775 77.658 (7117} 692 634 (58)
(2) Bonds - ‘ 233,977 231,158 (2,818) 85,079 84,260 (819) 81,680 60,933 (745) 503 497 &)
1) National & local govarnment bonds 198,442 198,432 (10) 41,615 41,476 (138) 31,904 31,676 (227} 260 258 {h
2) Corporate bonds ' 34,535 31,726 {2,808) 43,464 42,783 - (BB} 29,775 29,256 (518) 243 238 4
(3) Oiher 958,539 31,656 (26,883) 1,650,121 1,569,265 (50,865} 829,206 819,808 {8,387) 8,771 6,685 (76}
Total - ' 1,400,303 1,340,320 (59,982) 2,007,897 1,934,444 (73,452) 975,661 958,399 (17.261) 7,967 7,826 {140}

("} This table includes financial instruments that are deemed appropriate to be treatad as securities under the "Financial Instruments and Exchange Act”.

-7
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

“Acquisition or amortized cosis” in the tabie above refers o book values after deduction
of impairment losses. Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities of which market
value is readily available amounted to ¥27.897 million, ¥1,491 million and ¥46 millian
(U.S. 3C million) for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

¢. Maturity analysis of monetary claims and securities with maturities

As of March 31

Millions of Yen

2013
T Over Over 3 Over 5 Over 7
W;(t:a'? 1 yea:e to13 yearsto 5 yearsto7 yearsio Oy\a:;rgﬂ
years yvears years 10 years
Deposits ¥252,723 ¥ — ¥ - ¥ ¥ - ¥ —
Monetary claims bought - 2,003 — - — 238,510
Loans® 489,471 1,012,448 908,754 644 744 693,256 1,142,805
Securities
Held-to-maturity debt securilies ' 387,204 908,935 203,848 328,188 551411 3,485,458
Policy-reserve-matching bonds — - - - 109,625 ' 2,305,879
Available-for-sale securities with : )
maturilies 261,178 380,405 692,282 1,088918 2144223 8,184,171
- Total 1,390,575 2,31?,798 1,804,885 2,061,830 3,488,521 15,356,923
Miilicns of Yen
As of March 31 , 2014
. Over 1 Over Over 5 Over7 .
W;t:;: 1 yeartod years tg 5 yearsto7 yeai*s to OyV:;r;D
- years years years 10 years
Deposits ¥235424 ¥ ~ ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Monetary claims bought — - - - 233,622
Loans* 524,684 1,027,572 848,183 495,692 726,966 1,224,957
‘Securities
Held-to-maturity debt securities 583,264 418,846 254,313 354,592 582,231 3,380,317
Policy-reserve-matching bonds — — - 39,254 254,229 . 5111,978
Avaitable-for-sale securities with
maturities 337,318 411,400 1,088,151 1,239,726 2,486,794 5547443
Totat 1,860,701 1,857,819 2,230,658 2,129.686 4,060223 15,498,319
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Millions of Yen ‘ ) Millions of U.S. Daollars
As of March 31 2015 2015
Within 1 yS:re :013 yeoa‘:se rtg 5 yec;\:se. rtf 7 y(::?; ’?o Over 10 Within 1 yg:re '5013‘ yeoa‘:g rtg 5 ye?:: T.t05"7' yg: ?sr 30 Over 10
year years years years 10 years years year years years years 10 years years
Deposits ¥230,805 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ — ¥ - ¥ - $1,958 $ 5§ - 8 - $ - F -
Monetary claims bought - —~ - - - 228,523 - - - - - - 1,874
Loans* 516,245 975,185 759,328 482,098 718,850 1,329,301 4215 7,963 6,201 3,844 5870 10,855
Securities ‘
Held-fo-maturity debt securities 341,727 201,812 336,574 374;435 591,132 3,219,653 2,780 1,648 2,748 3,067 4,827 26,293
Palicy-reserve-matching bonds - — 10,397 101,338 196,296 6,512,681 — - 84 827 1,603 53,186
Available-for-sale securities with
-maturities 144,144 695,854 1,474,631 2,660,504 1,881,302 4,389,059 1,177 5,682 12,041 21,727 15,118 35,843
Total 1,241,023 1,872,851 2,580,831 3,619276 3,357,581 15,580,208 10,142 15,204 210786 29,657 27,420 128,053

(*} Bankruptcy and recrganization claims, which are expected to be unrecoverable, are not mc[uded in this table, and they are ¥307 millicn, ¥285 million and
¥231 miliion (U.S. $1 million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.
(*) Palicy loans are not included because they have no defined maturity dates.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
d. Maturity analysis of payables under securities borrowing transactions and foans payable
Millions of Yen
As of March 31 2013
. Over 1 Over 3 Qver 5 Cver7
Within 1 yeartod yearsto5 vyearsto7 vyearsto Over 10
year years
years years years 10 years
Payable under securities
. borrowing fransactions ¥946.281 - ¥ - ¥ — ¥ - ¥ - ¥ —
Loans payable 208 - - - 100,000 —
“Fotal 946,487 - - - 100,000 -
_ Millions of Yen
As of March 31 2014
Within 1 Qver 1 Over 3 Over 5 Over 7 Over 10
yeartod vyearstod yearsto7 vyearsto
year , years
years years years 10 years
Fayable under securities .
borrowing transactions . ¥640951 ¥ - ¥ @ — ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Loans payable 200 - — — 160,000 -
Total 641,151 — -~ - 100,000 -
Miillions of Yen Millions of U.S. Dellars
Az of March 31 2015 . 2015
- Over 1 Over 3 Over 5 Over? . Qver 1 Qver 3 Qver & Over?
W't:;? 1 yeartod yearsto5 yearsto7 vyearsio Ov:;rlo Wlt:;? 1 yearfo 3 vyearsto8 yearsto7 yearsto 0\:;;0
y years years years 10 years ¥ Y years Vears years 10 years y
Payable under securities
harrowing transactions ¥220000 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ . - ¥ - $1,796 % - - 5 - 3 - % -
Loans payable - - — 400,000 - - . — - - 815 - -
Total 220,000 - — 100,000 - - 1,796 — — 818 - -
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Fair values of derivative transactions

Hedge accounting not applied

i) Interest-rate related

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 2013
MNoti Over 1 ye .
amoug:}ggzl‘.ract inc[ude{l ?nr Fair value Net gains
value {A) (A) {Losses)
. Interest rate swaps
' Receipts fixed, payments
floating ¥49,100 ¥49 100 ¥2 111 ¥2 111
Total : 2,111
Millions of Yen
As of March 31 2014
ti v .
amoﬁgt}ggﬁimct %c%&e{!eia: Fair value Net gains
value (A) (A) {Losses)
interest rate swaps
Receipts fixed, paymeants
floating ¥47 6800 ¥47 800 ¥ 366 ¥ 366
Total 366
Millions of Yen "Millions of U.S. Dollars
As of March 31 2015 2015
otional r . Notional Cver 1 year :
amo[:]mtf’contract %\E:?Gt]e%e?n Fair value ?[fgégsa;g? amounticontract inc[udeytfi in  Fairvalue E?[fg sgsa;:)s
value (A} (A} ' valye (A) {A) -
Interest rate swaps .
Recalpts fixed, payments
floating ¥1,000 ¥1,000 ¥ 10 ¥ 10 3 8 3 8 b 0 3 0
Total 10 0

{*) Net gains (losses) represent the fair values.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consclidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
ii) Currency-related : :

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 - 2013
Notional Qver 1 year . ;
amountfcontract incfude{i in Fair value ?fésg:;:)s
value (A} {A)
Foreign currency forward contracts
Soid . ¥ 5950 ¥ — ¥ 23 ¥ 23
(U.S. dollar) . 1,078 - 8 8
(Euro) 3,086 — 13 13
(Australian dollar} 266 - 1 1
(Canadian dollar) ’ 1,007 — 0 _ 0
(Others} 514 - o) (0}
Bought ) ‘ 8,654 — (19) {19)
(U.5. doliar} 2,449 — (6) 5) .
{Euro} 4,409 — (13) {(13)
{Canadian dollar) 1,064 — {®) ()
{Australian dollar) 65 — {0) ()]
{Others) } 664 .- 0 0

Total 4
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Melji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 2014
- Notional Over 1 year ;
amount/contract include};! in Fair value Tf;sg:;g)s
value {A) {A)
Foreign currency forward contracts ;

Sold : ¥ 888 ¥ — ¥ (3 ¥ (3
(U.S. doliar) 277 — (1) (1
(Euro) 242 — (0) {0
(Australian dollar) e — (N M
(Canadian doliar) 4 - (0 (0)
{Others) ) 44 — (0) (0)

Baought 1,165 - 6 8
(U.S. dolar) _ 543 — 3 3
(Eurg} 490 - 2 2

(Canadian dellar) — —
{Australian dollar) — — — -
(Others) : .32 — 0 0
Totat 2
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

Millions of Yen Millions of 11.5. Dollars
As of March 31 2015 2015
Noticnal Qvaer 1 year . Notional Over 1 year ;
amounticontract  included in . Fair value f;ifgsg:;r;? - amoaunt/contract inc!ude{I in Fair value Tfég:;g?
valus (A) {A) value (A) {A)
Foreign currency forward contracts ‘

Sold ¥ 11,566 ¥ — % (46) ¥ (46) s 94 5 - $ (0 $ (0)
(U.S. doliar) 8,654 ' — (53) (53) 70 - (C) (0)
{Euro) 977 - 7 7 7 — 0 0
{Australian doilar) 888 — 3 3 7. - o 0
{Canadian dollar) 672 — - M 5 — {0 (0)
{Others) 373 t— (1) (n 3 - (@ (0)

Bought - 114,641 — 30 30 G5 o 0 a
(L1.S. doliar) - © 8,933 — 44 44 72 — 0 0
(Euro) 1,428 - (13) (13) 11 — (0) (0)
(Canadian dollar) 587 — 1 (. 4 — 0 0
(Australian dollar) ' 480 — (2} ’ (2) 4 - (Q) {0}
{Others) 220 - 0 0 1 — Q 0

Total . (16} (0)

{(*) Net gains (Iosses)‘represent the fair vaiues.
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Censolidated Financial Statements {(continued}

i) Stock-related

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 - 2013
Notional Qver 1 year N
amount/contract  included in Fair vaiue Tfig:ég)s
value (A} (A)
Exchange-tradad fransactions
Yen Stock index futures
Bought ¥ 733 ¥ — ¥ 34 ¥ 34
Foreign currency-denominated '
. stock index futures :
Bought 546 - (0) (@
Total 34
Millions of Yen
As of March 31 2014
Notional QOver 1 year e :
amount/confract  included in Fair value Tf;sg: ;IS];S
value {A} (A}
Exchange-traded transactions
Yen Stock index futures
Bought %6,194 ¥ - ¥ 24 ¥ 24
Foreign currency-denoiminated
stock index futures
Bought 687 — 18 16
Total 41
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
: Miliions of Yen Millions of U.5. Dollars
As of March 31 2015 2015
Notional Cver 1 year . Notional Qver 1 year :
amount/contract included in Fair vaiue ?[?;3;;2? amount/contract included in Fair value r:fig:;‘;f’
value (A) (A) valus {A) {A}
Exchange-traded transactions )
Yen Stock index futures
Bought , ¥ 1,069 ¥ — ¥ (25) ¥ (25) $ 8 I $ (O $ (0)
Foreign currency-denominated
~ stock index futures
Bought 1,681 — 3 3 13 - 0 0
Total 210 {0}

{*) Net gains (losses) represent the fair values,

iv) Bond-related

No ending balance as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015.

Medge accounting applied
i} Interest-rate related

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 2013
' Mail_‘l hedged-  Notional amount/ Over 1 year Fair value
items contract value {A} included in (A}
Deferred hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps
Receipts fixad, payments floating Insurance g '
liabilities ¥138,800C ¥135,800 ¥12,272
Special hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps
Recelpis fixed, payments fioaling Loans 50,861 458671 2,322

Total

14,595
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued}

As of March 31

Miltions of Yen

‘ 2014
Main hedged  Notional amount/ Over 1 year .
itemsg contract vaiue {A) included%n (A) Fair value
Deferred hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps
Receints fixed, payments floating Insurance
liabilities ¥186,800 ¥186,800 ¥10,358
Special hedge accounting
interest rafe swaps
Receipts fixed, paymenis floating: Loans 47,695 45,020 1,740
Total 12,099
Millions of Yen Millions of U.5. Dollars
As of March 31 2015 2015
Main hedged:  Notional amount/ Over 1 year . Notional amount/ Qver 1 year .
. itemsg contract vaiue {A) included};n {A} Fair value confract value (A} Encluded};n (A) Fair value
Deferred hedge accounting '
interest rate swaps
Receipts fixed, payments floating Insurance
. liahilitias ¥ 234,100 ¥ 234,100 ¥ 31,578 $ 1,911 $ 1,911 $ 257
Special hedge accounting :
[nterest rate swaps
Receipts fixed, paymérits floating lLoans 46,251 31141 1,237 377 254 10
Total : 32,813 267
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
i) Currency-related ‘

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 : 2013
‘Notional amount/  Over 1 year
Main hedged items contract value included in Fair value

(A) (A)

Fair value hedge accounting o
Foreign currency forward contracts o

¥(107,938)

Sold Foreign-currency- ¥1,651,256 ¥ -

(U.S.dollar) - denominated bonds 1,508,739 - (101,766)
{Euro) - - -
{Australian dallar) 142,516 - (6,169)

Deferred hedge accounting
Cross currency swaps
Receipts floating, payments fixed Foreign-currency-
(Euro) denominated bonds 9,208 9,208 158
Total ' (67.777) .
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
' ' Millions of Yen

As of March 31 2014
‘ ‘ Notional amount/ Over 1 year
Main hedged items contract value included in Fair value -
A (A)
Fair value hedge accounting
Foreign currency forward contracts
Sold Foreign-curransy- ¥2.031,158 ¥ - ¥(40,632)
(U.S. dollar) denominated bonds 1,690,459 - (33,578)
(Euro) 201,158 - (1,789)
(Australian dollar) 139,540 - (5,264)
Deferred hedge accounting ‘
Cross currency swaps
Receipts floating, paymaents fixed Foreign-currency-
(Euro) denominated bonds 26,958 26,958 (2,928)
Totai (43,562}

-

ol

l&!

g
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

Milions of Yen Millions of U.8. Dollars
As of March 31 2015 2015
. Notional amount/ Over 1 year Notional amount! Over 1 year
Main hedged items contract value inciuded in Fair value contract value included in  Fair value
, {A) {A) : (A) (A)
Fair value hedge accounting
Foreign currency forward contracts . - i
Sold Foreign-currency- ¥ 2,354,756 ¥ - ¥ (70,919) $19,230C $ - & (579)
(U.S. doflar) -dencminated bonds 2,010,069 - (89,973) 18,415 - (734)
(Eure) : 196,339 - 10,404 1,603 —- 84
(Australian doliar) 148,347 — 8,649 1,211 o 70
Deferred hedge accounting
Cross currency swaps
Receipts floating, payments fixed Forelgn-currency- ‘ ‘
{Eura) , denominated bonds 35,575 35,575 (4,800) - 290 290 (39)
Total ‘ {75,719) . (618)

(*) The table does not include foreign currency derivative transactions regarding assets and Yabilities which are denominated in foreign currencies but have
fixed settlement in yen. ‘
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

i} Stock-related '
No ending baiance as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015.

iv) Bond-related
No ending balance as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,

5. Securities Lending

Securities loaned under security lending agreements, including securities under
securities borrowing transactions, amounted to ¥1,678,741 million, ¥1,700,668 million
and ¥1,623,208 million (.S, $13,256 million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively.

6. Pledged Assetls

Assets pledged as collateral were securities in the amount of ¥4,318 million, ¥3,651
million and ¥4,586 million (U.S. $37 million} as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively.

7. Equity Securities issued by Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates

The total amounts of equity securities issued by unconsolidated subsidiaries and
affiliates were ¥64,479 million, ¥174,780 million and ¥188,734 million (U.S. $1,541
million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

8. Loans

The aggregate amounts of risk-monitored loans, which comprised of (1) loans to
bankrupt borrowers, (2) loans in arrears, (3) loans in arrears for three months or fonger,
ang (4) restructured loans, were ¥21,858 million, ¥21,136 million and ¥19,825 million
(U.8. $161 million} as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

The aggregate amounts of loans to bankrupt borrowers were ¥1 million and ¥0 million
as of March 31, 2013 and 2014, respectively. There were o loans to bankrupt
borrowers, and none as of March 31, 2015, The aggregate amounts of loans in arrears
were ¥3,043 million, ¥2,972 million and ¥2,630 million {U.8. $21 million) as of March 31,
2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

The amounts of loans deemed uncollectible and direcily deducted from the loans in the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 were ¥123 million,
¥44 milfion and ¥44 million (U.S. $0 million), respectively, for loans to bankrupt
borrowers, and ¥18 million, ¥14 milfion and ¥5 million (U.S. $0 million), respectively, for
ioans in amrears.

Loans to bankrupt borrowers represent the foans on which interest is not accrued due to
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

unlikefihood of repayment of principal or interest resulting from delinquent principal or
interest for a certain period or for other reasons (hereafier, “non-accrual loans”) and aiso
meet the conditions stipulated in Article 96, Paragraph 1, ltems 3 and 4 of the “Order for
Enforcement of the Carporation Tax Act” (Cabinet Order No. 97 in 1965). Loans in
arrears represent non-accrual loans excluding the loans to bankrupt borrowers (defined
in the above) and loans of which interest payments are postponed in order to support
these borrowers recovering from financial difficulties.

Thers were no loans in arrears for three months or longer as of March 31, 2013, 2014
and 2015,

Loans in arrears for three months or longer represent the loans on which payments of
principal or interest are past due over three months from the day following the
contractual due date.

lLoans in arrears for three months or longer do not include loans classified as loans to
bankrupt borrowers or loans in amrears.

The amounts of restructured loans were ¥18,914 million, ¥18,163 million and ¥17,195
million {U.S. $140 million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respeciively.

Restructured lpans represent the loans which have been restructured to provide relief to
the barrowers by reducing or waiving interest payments, by rescheduling repayments of
principal or payments of interest, or by waiving claims for borrowers in order to support
their recovery from financial difficulties. Restructured loans do not include loans
classified as loans in arrears for three months or longer, loans in arrears or loans to
bankrupt borrowers.

9. Loan Commitmenis

The amounts of loan commitments cutstanding were ¥28, 141 million, ¥23,939 million
and ¥24 386 million (U.S. $189 million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively.

10. Fair Values of Investment and Rental Property

The carrying arnounts of investment and rental properties were ¥605,558 million,
¥591,751 million and ¥592,183 miltion (U.S. $4,836 million), and their fair values were
¥626,086 million, ¥629,309 million and ¥647,046 million {U.S. $5,284 million) as of
March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The Company and ceriain subsidiaries
own office buildings and land in Tokyo and other areas, the fair value of which is mainly
based cn appraisals by qualified external appraisers.

11. Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets amounted to ¥405,012 million, -
¥405,205 milicn and ¥407,166 million (U.S. $3,325 millicn) as of March 31, 2013, 2014
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Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consclidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

and 2015, respectively.
12. Impairment of Fixed Assets
The details of the im pairmeht losses on fixed assets of the Company are as follows:

(1) Method for grouping the assets .

The Company groups ali the fixed assets held and utilized for the Company’s insurance
business as one asset group for the impairment test. ,

For real estate for non-insurance business and idle assets, each asset Is treated as an
independent unit for the impairment test.

(2) Description of impairment losses recognized
For the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, the Company recognized
impairment losses on real estate for non-insurance business that experienced a

- significant deterioration of profitability and on the idle assets that experienced a

significant decline in fair value due to downturn of the real estate market, For these
assets, the Company reduced the camrying amount to a recoverable amount which is
either fair vaiue less costs fo dispose or value-in-use, and recognized im pairment losses
as extraordinary losses in the consalidated statements of income.

{3) Details of fixed assets resulting in imbairment losses
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Number of
properties
impaired Millions of Yen
Asset group . Land Buildings Total
Real estate for :
non-insurance businsss -5 ¥ 592 ¥ 551 ¥ 1,144
Idle assets 30 1,012 1,283 2,285
_Total 35 ¥ 1,605 ¥ 1,835 ¥ 3,440
For the year ended March 31, 2014
Number of
properties :
‘ impaired Millions of Yen |
Asset group ) - Land Buildings Total
Real estate for ‘ ) .
non-insurance business - 2 ¥ 432 ¥ 2057 ¥ 2 480
ldle assets : 32 1,192 1,618 2,808
Total 34 ¥ 1,624 ¥ 3,674 ¥5208
For the year ended March 31, 2015
Number of
properties _
impaired Millions of Yen
Asset group Land Buildings Total
Real estate for

non-insurance business 2 ¥ 208 ¥3 ¥ 210



Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)

Idle assels , 62 - 2,531 3,554 6,085
Total _ 64 ¥2,737 ¥3,558 ¥ 6,206

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Millions of U.S. Dollars

Asset group Land Buildings Total
Real estate for :
non-insurance business $1 30 . $1
Idle assets 20 29 49
Total $22 $29 351

(4) Calculation method of recoverable amounts

The recoverable amounts of real estate for non-insurance business are determined at
net realizable value or value in use. The recoverable amounts for idle assets are net
realizable value. Value in use is determined as the estimated net future cash flows,
reflacting the volatility risk, discounted at 2.25%, 2.16% and 2.09% for the years ended
March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. Net realizable value is calculated based
on the appraisal value with reference to "Real Estate Appraisal Standards” or the
publicly announced appraisal value.

13. Retirement Benefit Plans
The following items provide detailed information for the retirement benefit pians.

(1) Summary of the retirement benefit plans

The Company has defined benefit corporate pension plans and retirement aillowance
plans, which distribute a [ump sum payment on retirement, as defined benefit plans. The
Company also has defined contribution pension plans as defined contribution plans.

As for accrued retirement benefits of certain consolidated subsidiaries, the simplified
method is applied.

(2} Transfer to defined contribution plans

The Company transfemed a ceriain portion of defined benefit corporate pension plans fo
defined contribution pension plans on July 1, 2014. As a result, other extraordinary
losses of ¥1,669 million {U.S. $13 million) were recognized for the year ended March 31,
2015.

{3} Defined benefit plansr
a. Assumptions of the Company used in accounting for the defined benefit plans far the
years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Years ended March 31 2014 2015
Method of aftributing benefit {o period of Straight-line Benefit
sefvice basis . farmula basis
Amortization period for actuarial
differences 10 years 10 years

_Amortizaticn periad for past service cost 1Q years 10 years



Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b. Changes in the retirement benefit obligations for the years ended March 31, 2014 and
2015 were as follows:

Millions of
: Millions of Yen U.8. Dollars
Years ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ¥ 371,057 ¥ 356,916 52,914
Service costs 12,192 11,448 - 93
Interest cost on retirement benefit
obligations 3,432 3,083 25
Actuarial losses (gains) recognized 4,299 4,320 35
Benefits paid ' : {31,320) (27.501) {224)
Past service costs incurred 69 (4,139) - (33)
Others 260 (27,018) (220)
Balance at the end of the fiscal year 360,890 317,110 2,589

¢. Changes in the plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as
follows:

Millions of
‘ : Millions of Yen  U.S. Dollars
Years ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ¥ 347,253 ¥ 362,538 $2,960
Expected return on plan assets 3,525 3,391 ' 27
Actuarial gains (fosses) recognized 9,585 49,182 401
Contributions by employer 13,471 - 10,194 83
Benefits paid , (11,683) {10,732) {87)
Others 384 {24,201) (197)
Balance at the end of the fiscal year 362,538 380,372 3,188

d. The amount of the retirement benefit obligatiohs and the plan assets, and the amount
of the defined benefit liabilities and the defined benefit assets recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2014 and 2015 were determined as-
follows:

Millions of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
- As of March 31 ' 2014 2015 2015
Present value of funded retirement benefit
obligations ¥ 358,918 ¥ 315,093 $2,573
Plan assets al fair value ‘ ‘ {362,538) {390,372) {3,188)
Net present value of funded retirement _
benefit obligations (3,619)  (75,278) (614)
Present value of non-funded retirement
benefit obligations 1,972 2017 - 16
Net balance on the consolidated balance
sheet {1,647) (73,261) {588)
Consists of;
Defined benefit liabilities 814 1,084 - 8

Defined benefit assels {2 461) (74,345) (607)




Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiarieé
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

e. The amounts recognized in retirement benefit expenses in the consolidated
statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Milhons of
: Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Years ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
Service costs ¥12,192 ¥ 11,448 $93
Interest cost on retirement benefit ’ :
obligations 3,432 3,083 25
Expected return on plan assels (3,525) (3,391) (27)
Amortization of net agtuaria losses {gains) 12,776 10,864 88
Amorlization of net past service costs {1,292) (778) 6)
Qthers : 19 1,683 13
Retirement benefit expenses 23,601 22,913 187

f. Major compoenents of other comprehensive income and total accumulated other

comprehensive income

Major companerits of other comprehensive income (before income tax effect

adjustments) for the year ended March 31, 2015 were as follows:

Miilions of Millions of
Yen U.S. Dollars

Yoars ended Warch 31 5015 2015

Actuarial gains (losses) ¥ 60,559 $494
Fast service costs - 2,927 23
Total 63,486 518

Major components of total accumulated octher comprehensive income (before income
tax effect adjustments) for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of

- us.

Millions of Yen Doliars

Years ended March 31 2014 2015 20156
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) ¥ (98,215) ¥ (37,713) $(307)
Unrecognized past service costs 3,072 - 5989 48
Total (95,143) {31,723) (259)

g. Plan assets .
Plan assets as of March 31, 2014 and 2015 were comprised as follows:

% of total fair value of plan assets

As of March 31 , . 2014 2015
Debt securities ‘ 7.4% 8.3%
Stocks . 40.3% 47.3%
General account of life insurance cecmpanies 30.1%. 25 1%
Jointly invested assets 19.4% 17.0%
Cash and deposits 1.8% 1.1%
Others _ 1.1% 1.2%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Plan assets include the retirement benefit trusts. The amounts of the retirement benefit
trusts were 49.5% and 57.1% of total plan assetis as of March 31, 2014 and 2015,

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

h. The expected long-ierm rate of return on ptan assets

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is caloulated by aggregating the
weighted rate of return derived from each asset category. The expecied long-term rate
of return for each asset category is based primarily on varicus aspects of long-term
prospects for the sconomy that include historical performance and the market
ehvironment,

i. Assumptions used in calculation
Assumptions of the Company used in accounting for the defined benefit plans for the
years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Years ended March 31 2014 2015
Discount rate 0.9% 0.9%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Defined henefit corporate pension plans ‘ 2.0% 2.0%
Retirement benefit trusts 0.0% 0.0%

{4) Defined contribution plans
The amount recognized as expenses for the defined contribution pension plans was
¥900 miltion (U.S. $7 million) for the year ended March 31, 20158,

Accrued retirement benefits

The following tables set forth the status of accrued retirement benefits for the defined
benefit plans as of March 31, 2013:

{1) Refirement benefit obligations

Millions of Yen

As of March 31 : 2013
a. Retirement benefit obligations ¥ (371,857)
b. Plan assets at fair value 347,253
[including retirement benefit trusts] [174,559]
c. Net retirement benefit obligations (a+b) (24,703)
d. Unrecognized actuarial losses 116,245
e. Unrecognized past service cosis ) (4.434)
f. Net'value in the consolidated balance
sheet(c+d+e) ’ ' 87,106
g. Prepaid pension cost 87,864
h. Accrued retirement benefits (f-g) ¥ {7157}

(2) Assumptions used in calculation
Assumptions of the Company used in actounting for the defined benefit plans for the
year ended March 31, 2013 were as follows:

Year ended March 31 . : 2013

“Method of attributing benefit to period of service _ Siraight-line basis
Discount rafe : 0.9%




Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets:
Defined benefit corporate pension plans

From 4/1/2012 to 6/30/2012 3.0%
From 7/1/2012 to 3/31/2013 2.0%
Retirement benefit trusts 0.0%

Amortization period for actuarial differences
{Commencing in the following fiscal year after they

are incurred) 10 years
Amortization period for past service cost 10 years

(3) Retirement benefit expenses
Retirement benefit expenses for the year ended March 31, 2013 were comprised of the
following:

WMillions of Yen

Year ended March 31 2013
a. Service costs ¥ 11,009
b. Interest cost on retirement benefit obligations 6,974
c. Expected return on plan assets (3,795)
d. Amortization of actuarial losses 5,297
e. Amortization of past service costs (2,868)
f. Others ' 3
g. Retirement benefit expenses (a+b+otd+e+f) ¥ 16,621

14. Deferred Taxes

{1) Deferred tax assets/liabilities were recognized as follows:

Millions of

Miilions of Yen U.S, Dollars

As of Mareh 31 2013 2014 2015 2015

Deferred tax assets ¥ 563,231  ¥657,621 ¥ 650,205 $5,309
Valuation allowance for

deferrad {ax assets (7,098) {(6,524) {6,417) (52)

Subtotal 556,132 650,996 643,787 5257

Deferred tax liabilities (731,194} (771,087)  {1,146,543) (9,363)

Net deferred tax assets .
(liabilities) {175,061) (120,090 (502,755) (4,105)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Major companents of deferred tax assets/liabilities were as follows:

#illions of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
As of March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
Deferred tax assets 7
Palicy reserves and ,
other reserves ¥ 356,501 ¥ 304 696 ¥ A24 852 - $3,469
Reserve for price
fluctuation 111,743 147,792 141,866 1,158
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gdins
on available-for-sale .
securiies 694,718 736,081 1,108,381 5,035

(2) The statutory tax rates were 33.28%, 33.28% and 30.73% for the years ended
March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. Main factors in the differences between
the statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates after considering deferred taxes
were as follows:

Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015
Policyholders’ dividend

reserves _ (17.45)% (17.77)% {15.19)%
Effects of changes in the

income tax rate - . 11.81%

(3) From the end of the year ended March 31, 2014, the statutory tax rates of the
Company which are used to measure deferred tax assets and liabilities recoverable
during the period within one year were changed from 33.28% to 30.73% due to the
termination of the special reconstruction corporate tax in accordance with the "Act for
Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act” (Act No. 10 in 2014).

Due to this change, as of March 31, 2014, both deferred tax liabilities of the Coempany in
the consolidated balance sheet and deferred portion of income taxes of the Company in
the consolidated statement of income increased by ¥1,983 miltion,

{4) From the end of the year ended March 31, 2015, the statutory tax rates of the
Company which are used to measure deferred tax assets and liabilities were changed
from 30.73% fo 28.80% in accordance with the “Act for Partial Revision of the Income
_ Tax Act” (Act No. 9in 2015). '

Due to this changs, as of March 31, 2015, deferred tax liabiiities of the Company in the
consolidated balance sheet decreased by ¥34,385 million (U.S. $280 million}, deferred
tax liahilities for land revaluation in the consolidated balance sheet decreased by ¥5 754
million (U.S. $46 miliion), and deferred portion of income taxes of the Company in the
consolidated statement of income increased by ¥43,023 milton (U.S. $351 million).
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15. Policyholiders’ Dividend Reserves

Changes in policyholders’ dividend reserves for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014
and 2015 were as follows:

: Miltions of
' . Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2015 2015
Balance at the beginning of the '
fiscal year ¥ 296,253 ¥ 280,524 ¥ 270,023 $2,205
Transfer frem surplus in the
previous fiscal year - 133,466 152,835 158,084 1,291
Dividend payments to
policyhoiders during the fiscal -
year (149,773) {163,872) (175,208) (1,430)
Interest accrued during the
fiscal year 578 - 5835 506 . 4
Balance at the end of the f{iscal
year ¥280E24 ¥ 270023 ¥ 253 414 $2,069

16, Subordinated Debt

As of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, other liabilities included subordinated debts of
¥100,000 million, ¥100,000 million and ¥100,000 million (U.S. $816 millian), respectively,
and the repayments of which are subordinated to other obligations.

17. Accrued Retirement Benefits for Directors and Executive_ Officers

Accrued retirement benefits for direclors and executive officers of the Company are
provided based cn a portion accrued for the period of the estimated payable amount.

in 2008, the Compensation Committee of the Company decided {o {enminate the
retirement allowance scheme for directors and executive officers of the Company
effeciive June 30, 2008.

No provisions have been made for incumbent directors and executive officers since that
date.

18. Reserve for Contingent Liabilities

Reserve far contingent liabilities of the Company is provided for the amount of
estimated possible losses in the future with respect to the securitizations of loans and
loan commitments outstanding pursuant te Article 24-4 of the “Ordinance for ‘
Enforcement of the Insurance Business Act”.

19. Foundation Funds
Foundation funds serve as the primary source of capital for Japanese mutual life

insurance cornpanies. These funds are similar to loans, as interest payments, maturity
dates and other items must be established at the time of the offering. In the event of a
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bankruptcy or similar development, repayment of the principal and interest of foundation
funds is subordinated to the repayment of amounts owed to ordinary creditors and
insurance claims and benefit payments owed to policyholders. Upon redemption of
foundation funds, mutual companies are required to make an addition te the reserve for
redemption of foundation funds, which serves as retained earnings, equal to the amount
redeemed. As a result, the full amount of foundation funds remains in net asssts even
after redemption.

The Company redeemed foundation funds and also established for reserve for
redemption of foundation funds pursuant to Article 56 of the “Insurance Business Act” in
the amount of ¥6C,000 million (U.S. $489 million) as of March 31, 2015.

The Compény offered foundation funds in the amount of ¥100,000 million, ¥50,000
million and ¥60,000 million (U.S. $489 million) pursuant to Article 60 of the “tnsurance
Business Act” in the years ended March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

20. Separate Accounts

The total amounts of assets held in separate accounts defined in Article 118, Paragraph
1 of the "Insurance Business Act” were ¥771,030 million, ¥822,310 million and ¥864,890
million (U.S. $7,084 million) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The

. amounts of separate account liabilities were the same as these figures,

21. Contributions to the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection
Corporation

The Company estimated future contributions to the Life Insurance Policyholders
Protection Corporation in the amount of ¥51,417 million, ¥51,981 million and ¥52,814
milion (U.S. $431 mitlion) as of March 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively, pursuant
1o Article 259 of the "Insurance Business Act”.

These coniributions are recognized as operating expenses when contributed.
22. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is calculated based on the pretax surplus included in the
consolidated statements of income. The asset and liability approach is used to
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax conseguences of -
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and
liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying the effective income {ax rates that
are based on the enacted statutory rates to the temporary differences.

.23, Other Comprehensive Income

The.components of other comprehensive income {reclassification adjustments and
income tax effects relating to other comprehensive income) for the years ended March
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31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of

~ Millions of Yen  U.S, Dollars
Years ended March 31 2013 2014 2018 2015
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities:
Amount arising during the fiscal
year ¥ 1,280,185 ¥ 323,272 ¥ 1657722 $13,537
Reclassification adiustments (106,082)  (180,064) {(184,502) (1,506)
Before income tax effect
adjustments . 1,174,102 143,208 1,473,219 12,031
___Income tax effects (361,884) (43.919) (375,970 (3,670}
Net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale securities B12,217 99,288 1,087 249 8,960
Deferred unrealized gains {iosses) on derivatives under hedge accounting:
Amount arising during the fiscal : ‘
year ¥ 0588 ¥ (1,767) ¥ 22,901 $187
Reclassification adjustments ‘ (2,141) (2,640) - {2,961) (24)
Before income tax effect
adjustments ‘ 7,448 {4,407) 19,939 162
Income tax effects (2,106) 1,536 (5,428) {44
Deferred unrealized gains ' ‘
{losses) on derivatives under
hedge accounting 7 5,340 {2,871) 14,511 118
Land revaluation differences:
Amount arising during the fiscal
year ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — $ —
Reclassification adjustments - — - -
Before income tax effect
adjustments - - — -
Income tax effects 25 — 5,884 48
Land revaluation differences ' 25 — 5,884 48
Foreign currency translation adjusiments:
Amount arising during the fiscal
year | ¥ 3,259 ¥ 7,049 ¥ 5827 47
Reclassification adjusimenis - - — —
Before income tax effect :
adjustments 3,258 7,048 5827 47
inceme tax effects - — - -
Foreign currency translation
adjustments 3,259 7,049 5,827 47
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:
Amount arising during the fiscal
year ¥ ¥ — ¥ 44 064 $359
Reclassification adjustrments - - 19,355 158
Before income tax effect o
adjustments — - 63,419 517
Income tax effects - : — — {20,284) (165)
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Remeasuraments of defined

benefit plans . — — 43,135 352
Share of other comprshensive income of affiliates accounted for by the equity
method: ‘

Amount arising during the year ¥5400  ¥10,788 ¥ 11,443 $23
Reclassification adjustments — 477 {13). {0}
Share of other comprehensive .

income of affiliates accounted for .

by the equity method . 8,400 10,310 11,430 93
Total other comprehénsive

income ¥ 830,243 ¥ 113777 ¥1.178,038 $9,620

24. Subsequent Events

Appropriation of surplus

The proposed appropriaticn of surplus of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2015 were approved as planned at the annuai meeting of the representatives of
policyholders held on July 2, 2015,

Share acquisition

The Company entered into a definitive agreement to accuire 100% of the outstanding
shares of StanCorp Financial Group, Inc. (“StanCorp”) on July 23 (July 24, Japan local
time), 2015.

{1} Purpose of share acquisition

The Company aims to further improve value for policyholders by enhancing profits and
diversifying the business portfolio {dispersing business risk) of the entire group through
expanding the scale and increasing the level of profits of overseas insurance business.

(2) Overview of the acquired company
a. Company name
StanCorp Financial Group, Inc.

b. Location
Poriland, Oregon, USA

c. Business _
Insurance and insurance related business (*1) ) _
(*1) StanCorp is a holding company and its subsidiaries operate insurance business,
cic.

d. Premiums (consolidated basis, for the fiscal year ended December 2014)
U.5. $2,052 million
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e. Total assets (consolidated basis, as of the end of December 2014)
U.S. 22,711 million

(3) Overview of the acguisition ‘

The Company intends to acquire the shares by January to March 20186. The acquiring
price is expected io be approximately U.S. $4,997 million (approximately ¥624.6 billion)
(*2) and it will be funded through cash and cash equivalents in hand. Under and in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations in the U.S., the acquisition witl be
implemented by first establishing a special purpose company of the Company in
Delaware, and then merging it with and info StanCorp. The acquisition is subject to
approval of StanCorp's shareholders and approval of relevant regulatory authorities, as
well as other customary closing conditions. '

(*2) The exchange rate used to calculate the yen-dominated amount is U.S. $1 to
¥125.00.



